

SECRET

302.A(2)

ARB 2-11

Memorandum

To:

From:

Subject: Proposed plan submitted by AEROSOL (1).

1. Appended is a summary of a proposed plan submitted to me by AEROSOL (1) on 9 April, 1961. The plan includes a general prospectus and a more detailed proposal for the first phase of operations, designated as "Petya 6" which ~~is appended~~ includes a ~~summary~~ estimate of costs for "Petya 6".
2. As a first-phase operation "Petya 6" is too ambitious, especially as regards costs. It also shows signs of haste at several points. However, it presents on the whole a good basis ~~from~~ which to proceed.
3. A full translation of the plan will be completed as quickly as possible.
4. Recommend that I be permitted, after general discussion of the plan, to draft a counter-proposal the objectives of which would be (1) to reduce the size and cost of the operation, and (2) to reduce the time estimated as necessary for its accomplishment.

DECLASSIFIED AND RELEASED BY  
CENTRAL INTELLIGENCE AGENCY  
SOURCES METHOD EXEMPTION 3028  
NAZI WAR CRIMES DISCLOSURE ACT  
DATE 2007

SECRET

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED PLAN  
FOR AEMOSOL

I General Prospectus

1. The destruction of bolshevism requires
  - a. A propaganda offensive, by all means possible, to prepare the ground for revolution, including especially the furtherance of the "molecular theory."
  - b. The development of an agent network ("carcass") consisting of AEMOSOL (I) members who penetrate the target area from abroad and establish themselves at strategic points throughout it.
2. The culminating point of this work is armed revolution, which is aided from without by the dropping of specially organized "military revolutionists" at key points. The revolutionary government, which is set up within the target area immediately, calls "upon the nations of the free world" for their further aid, in the form of intervention by units of volunteers.
3. To produce a revolutionary situation in the target area, the following measures must be taken:
  - a. Creation of a net of radio stations, for propaganda as well as communication.
  - b. Flooding of the target area with literature by all possible means.
  - c. Preparation of cadres of military revolutionists for airborne ~~skirmish~~ penetration.
  - d. Preparation of volunteer corps for airborne attack in force.
  - e. Efforts to approach all Soviet personnel serving abroad (diplomatic representatives, sailors, et. al.)
  - f. Creation of a General Revolutionary Staff.
  - g. Gradual "mobilization" of public opinion abroad.
4. In the event that a major international war is unleashed by the Soviets before a revolution can be developed, all efforts must be made to convert the war into a civil one.
5. Although the work outlined in this general prospectus must be developed gradually, it must advance in almost all its forms simultaneously. Once a beginning is made, moreover, it will tend to accelerate rapidly.
6. "Petyn 6", which follows, is presented as a first phase in the development of the general plan. Further phases must be planned while the initial one is in progress.

II Phase Plan "Petyn 6"

A. General.

1. "Petyn 6" is based on the estimate that its implementation will take approximately 3 months.
2. It consists of three operations, which are dependant upon each other for their full success:
  - a. Operation "Carcass."
  - b. Operation "Spain."
  - c. Operation "Radio."

3. The implementation of "Petra 8" requires the creation of special staff machinery, and the taking of special security measures. The latter have not yet been clearly foreseen, and will be dealt with in a separate document.
4. Over and above the budget for "Petra 8" appended hereto, an extra 25% of the required total sum should be made available for emergency use.
5. The following items, since they do not relate directly to "Petra 8" are not dealt with, but should receive consideration in plans for succeeding phases:
  - a. Utilization of defectors as a potential source of agents.
  - b. Air delivery of propaganda.
  - c. Work in seaports (in finding channels of infiltration through the offices of soviet seamen.)
  - d. Work with Soviet diplomatic representatives.
  - e. Organization of stay-behind resistance in Germany and Austria in the event of a Soviet attack.

#### B. Operation "Carcass."

Problem: Preparation of cadres for the creation of a net of revolutionary organizations within the USSR, and the dispatch of the first echelon.

1. Recruitment of agents.
  - a. The Staff is notified by the leaders of existing AEROSOL (1) groups of possible candidates.
  - b. A special recruiting officer is sent to select candidates.
2. Transfer of candidates to place of training. *agent* *post to westward area and of recruitment*  
 This includes arrangements for candidates' cover, travel, etc.
3. Training (AEROSOL (1)) *CARAME & ALS - direction of*  
 Candidates attend a school conducted by AEROSOL (1), whose program includes:
  - a. Study of the USSR, including conditions of life at the present moment.
  - b. Technical training, both general (weapons familiarization, documentation, etc.) and special for individual missions (e.g. radio-telegraphy training).
 Length of training is estimated at from 2 to 8 months.
4. Additional training and equipping. (FISCAPE)  
 Training would include such special items as are necessary for the individual missions of the candidates. e.g. codes and ciphers. Equipping would include the necessary clothing, of USSR make or type, small personal articles, weapons, documents, codes and ciphers, etc.

## 5. Dispatch.

Agents should be dispatched in groups of two.  
An AEROSOL (1) supervisor should be permitted to assist in the final briefing and [should accompany agents to the moment of actual dispatch (boundary-crossing or jumping).]

70 6. Communication ~~and~~ with agents after their dispatch. — by U.S.

a. By radio, either two-way or one-way, through the AEROSOL (1) underground radio transmitter.  
b. By post, from agents to letter-drops established outside the Soviet Zone.

This step necessitates the creation of a communications center with the Staff.

It is contemplated that the dispatch of the 1st echelon is possible by the Autumn of this year. The 1st echelon may consist of 1 or of 2 groups (of 2 men each.)

Target dates:

May	Arrival of candidates of 1st echelon at AEROSOL (1) school.
1 Jun	Opening of the AEROSOL (1) school.
1 Aug	Opening of FJGAPF school.
1 Aug	Radio station in operation.
1 Aug	Staff communications center in readiness.

## 6. Operation "Spain".

Problem: Development of revolutionary sentiment in the Soviet Army of Occupation in Germany and Austria; the creation within the Soviet Army of an agent net, and the utilization of this net for development of the net within the USSR.

1. (Analysis of the importance of working with the occupation forces.)

## 2. Objectives.

- a. Revolutionary propaganda among the occupation forces.
- b. Recruitment of sympathizers as members of the net, either as ~~known~~ agents within the Army of Occupation or as agents who can be given missions into USSR proper, upon their furlough or demobilization.
- c. Increase of the number of defectors crossing into the Western zones.

## 3. Implementation.

- a. In Berlin:
  - (1) Creation of a group of AEROSOL (1) agents (3 to 5 persons) which would increase the penetration of propaganda materials into the Germans.
  - (2) Creation of a similar group (3 to 5 persons) which would establish contact with Soviet army personnel.
  - (3) Development of German agent nets in Berlin and Soviet Germany.
  - (4) Establishment of a small radio transmitter for local pro-

paganda work and for liaison with the Staff.

b. In Western Germany:

- (1) A chain of stations near the Soviet border for handling the passage of propaganda material and for the establishment of contact with Soviet Army personnel.
- (2) Development of a German agent not functioning with each of the border stations, but controlled by a member of the central Staff.

c. In Soveans Germany:

- (1) A net of German residents and agents controlled by the Staff.

d. In Austria:

- (1) A group (3 to 6 persons) similar to the groups in Berlin, but carrying on work on a smaller scale.
- (2) A radio transmitter similar to the transmitter in Berlin.

4. Operation "Spain" demonstrates the close relationship between agent operations and propaganda. The expansion of propaganda facilities which would support the agent operations necessitates the establishment of a Propaganda Branch, a Printing Office, and a Laboratory with the Staff.

D. Operation "Radio."

Problem: The preparation of opinion within Soviet territory facilitating the creation there of "molecules" of resistance, and direct contact with the revolutionary agent net, both in the army of occupation and in the USSR proper.

1. Objectives.

- a. Regular daily broadcasts of propaganda material and of concrete instructions to existing "molecules" of resistance.
- b. Special broadcasts to Soviet Army signal personnel.
- (c. Servicing of operation "Carross" and "Spain". (Communication with agents on operational matters in code.) *AIS 0274*)

2. Implementation.

- a. Procurement of a 2 to 3 kilowatt mobile station.
- b. Procurement of two  $\frac{1}{2}$  kilowatt transmitters, one each for Berlin and Austria.
- c. The development of radio-editorial work, which would include a station for monitoring of Soviet broadcasts, as well as a radio studio for the preparation of recordings for broadcasts.
- d. Establishment, as a part of the Staff, of a Propaganda Branch which would control the material being broadcast (See C.4. above).
- e. Study of the possibility of establishing a radio transmitter mounted on a sea-going vessel of small size.
- f. Establishment of camouflage necessary for the security of the various stations.

## BUDGET FOR OPERATION "CARCASS"

Initial expenditures

1. Expenses incident to winding up affairs of four persons (1st echelon of agents), at DM 1000 per person.	DM 4,000	
2. Travel for four persons to place of training, at DM 500 per person.	<u>2,000</u>	
Total Initial Expenditures		6,000

Monthly expenditures

1. Subsistence for families of 4 persons, at 300 per family.	1,200	
Total family subsistence for 8 months		<u>9,600</u>
Total for Operation "Carcass"		DM 15,600

## Notes:

- Expenses for recruitment of candidates are shown under "Recruiting Office."
- Expenses for training of candidates are shown under "School."
- Expenses for the preparation of reserves for Operation "Carcass" are shown under Operation "Spain."
- Expenses for equipment and dispatch of agents are not included.

## BUDGET FOR OPERATION "SPAIN"

Initial Expenditures

1. Travel for 40 persons to training area, at 400 per person	DM 16,000	
2. Expenses incident to winding up affairs of 40 persons, at 500 per person.	20,000	
3. Procurement of safe-houses in Austria (one house) and Berlin (two houses).	8,000	PC
4. Furnishings for above safe-houses	2,000	
5. Two automobiles, 1 ea. for Austria and Berlin.	18,000	
6. Two typewriters.	<u>800</u>	
Total Initial Expenditures		64,800

## (Budget for Operation Spain, cont'd)

Monthly Expenditures

1. Subsistence and pay for 40 persons		
Subsistence of each person, DM	400	
Pay for each person	300	
Total per person	DM 700	
Total for 40 persons		DM 28,000
2. Pay and subsistence allowance for German and Austrian agents.		
Subsistence of each person	250	
Pay for each person	150	
Total per person	400	
Total for 120 persons		48,000
	Total	<u>76,000</u>
May.....	15,000	
Jun.....	25,000	
Jul.....	35,000	
Aug.....	45,000	
Sep.....	55,000	
Oct.....	65,000	
Nov.....	75,000	
Dec.....	55,000	
Total	400,000	
Monthly average (400,000/8) for items 1. and 2.		DM 50,000
3. Subsistence for families of 40 persons at 300 per family.		12,000
4. Development of net within Soviet Army.		8,000
5. Maintenance of safe-houses in Berlin and Austria.		5,000
6. Operation and maintenance of automobiles.		<u>1,400</u>
Total Monthly Expenditures		58,900 <del>58,900</del>
Total Expenditures for 8 months		551,200
Total for Operation "Spain"		616,000

Notes:

1. Expenses for training of agents are included under "School"
2. Expenses for recruitment of agents are included under "Recruiting Office."
3. Expenses for supply of the operation with propaganda material are included under "Propaganda Branch" and "Printing Office."
4. Expenses for supply of the operation with technical equipment are included under "Laboratory."
5. Expenses for signal communications and radio propaganda for the operation are included under "Radio" etc.
6. Subsistence for families shown here covers the entire plan "Petra B".

## BUDGET FOR OPERATION "RADIO"

Initial Expenses

1. 2 to 3 kilowatt radio station, complete.	DM 120,000	
2. Two 1/2-kilowatt stations, complete. (for Berlin and Austria)	<u>30,000</u>	150,000

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 8-man team, at 400 per person. (Two 4-man shifts, for 24-hr opn. Each shift to contain 1 commentator 1 technician 1 power-maintenance-man, driver, and lookout 1 reconnaissance man.)	3,200	
2. Subsistence for two 2-man teams, for the two 1/2-kw stations, at 400 per person.	1,600	
3. Travel in connection with duty for 8-man team, at 300 per person.	2,400	
4. Travel in connection with duties for two 2-man teams, at 300 per person.	1,200	
5. Maintenance of base for the larger station (garage, repair facilities, and quarters for off-duty personnel.)	1,000	
6. Operation and maintenance of vehicles of the larger station.	3,000	
7. Operation and maintenance of vehicles of the smaller stations.	1,500	
8. Expenses for camouflage of the larger station.	2,000	
9. Expenses for camouflage of the smaller stations	<u>20,000</u>	
Total monthly expenses	<u>16,900</u>	135,200
Total monthly expenses for 6 mo.		<u>811,200</u>
Total expenses, "Radio"		286,200

## BUDGET FOR "STAFF"

Initial Expenses

1. Equipment of headquarters	25,000	
2. Organisational expenses (includes travel of new staff members to HQ)	10,000	
3. 2 automobiles	18,000	
4. 8 typewriters	3,200	
5. Radio station for operational communication with "Caracas" agents.	<u>5,000</u>	
Total Initial Expenses		67,200

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 9 staff members, at 500 per person	4,500	
2. Duty-travel expenses for staff members	1,000	
3. Maintenance of headquarters	1,000	
4. Operation and maintenance of automobiles	1,400	
5. Expenses incident to camouflage of the headquarters	6,000	
6. Communications and office expenses	<u>1,000</u>	
Total monthly expenses	18,900	
Total for 8 months		<u>117,200</u>
Total expenses, "Staff"		166,400

## BUDGET FOR "PROPAGANDA BRANCH"

Initial Expenses

1. Organisational expenses (includes travel to HQ of 3 to 6 persons)	5,000	
2. Purchase of 4 typewriters	<u>1,800</u>	
Total Initial Expenses		6,800

Monthly expenses

1. Subsistence for 6 people, at 500 per person.	2,500	
2. Duty-travel expenses	1,500	
3. Office expenses	<u>500</u>	
Total Monthly expenses	4,500	38,000
Total, for "Propaganda Branch"		<u>42,800</u>

## BUDGET FOR "RADIO EDITORIAL OFFICE"

Initial Expenses

1. Organizational expenses (incl. travel of personnel to HQ)	10,000	
2. Equipment of radio studio (incl. recording equipment)	10,000	
3. 1 automobile (for delivery of materials to radio station)	2,000	
4. 2 typewriters	500	
5. 3 radio receivers for monitoring	<u>2,000</u>	
Total Initial Expenses		30,500

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 10 persons, at 400 per person (4 monitors 2 stenographers 3 editors 1 supervisor)	4,000	
2. Duty-travel for personnel	1,000	
3. Operation and maintenance of automobile	700	
4. Communications and office expenses	1,000	
5. Materials for radio-studio	<u>500</u>	
Total Monthly Expenses	7,200	
Total for 3 Months		<u>21,600</u>
Total, "Radio Editorial Office"		52,100

## BUDGET FOR "PRINTING OFFICE"

Initial Expenses

1. Technical equipment for printing office. (Includes equipment necessary to make the office independent. The present printing office has already its own linotype and press.)	50,000	
2. Procurement of premises for printing office.	40,000	
3. Furnishing of premises	10,000	
4. Organizational expenses	12,000	
5. 2 automobiles (light trucks)	13,000	
Total Initial Expenses	125,000	125,000

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 5 persons, at 400 per person. (This personnel will be utilized for work on clandestine publications in connection with the operation.)	2,000	
2. Rent and maintenance of premises	2,000	
3. Operation and maintenance of automobiles	1,400	
4. Expenses for camouflage of operations. (It is contemplated that the announced circulation of overt publications will be much greater than the actual figure. Taxes on the announced circulation will also, however, be greater.)	8,000	
5. Materials (leaflet paper, ink, etc.)	12,000	
Total Monthly Expenses	25,400	
Total for 8 Months		203,200
Total, "Printing Office"		331,200

Note: Expenses for premises and camouflage of operations include premises and camouflage for the Propaganda Branch and the Radio Editorial Office.

## BUDGET FOR "SCHOOL"

Initial Expenditures

1. Procurement and furnishing of premises for school and dormitory	30,000	
2. Organizational expenditures	5,000	
3. Instructional equipment	10,000	
4. 2 typewriters	<u>500</u>	
Total Initial Expenditures		45,000

Monthly Expenditures

1. Subsistence for instructors and service personnel, 7 persons at 400 per person.	2,800	
2. Duty-travel of personnel	1,500	
3. Subsistence for a current average of 16 students, at 400 per person	6,000	
4. Rent and maintenance of premises	3,000	
5. Camouflage of school	1,000	
6. Office expenses	100	
7. School supplies	<u>500</u>	
Total Monthly Expenses	14,900	
Total for 8 Months		<u>119,200</u>
Total, "School"		165,000

## BUDGET FOR "RECRUITING OFFICE"

Initial Expenses

1. 1 automobile	8,000	
2. 1 typewriter	<u>400</u>	
Total initial expenses		8,400

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 2 recruiting agents, at 400 per person.	800	
2. Duty travel	3,000	
3. Operation and maintenance of automobile.	700x	
4. Communications expenses	<u>300</u>	
Total Monthly Expenses	4,800	
Total for 8 Months		<u>38,400</u>
Total, "Recruiting Office"		46,800

## BUDGET FOR LABORATORY

Initial Expenses

1. Procurement of technical equipment (sineograph etc.)	18,000	
2. Furnishing of laboratory premises	6,000	
3. Organizational expenses	<u>1,000</u>	
Total initial Expenses		24,000

Monthly Expenses

1. Subsistence for 2 laboratory tech- nicians at 400 per person	800	
2. Rent and maintenance of premises	500	
3. Camouflage of laboratory	500	
4. Distribution of products	500	
5. Procurement of materials	<u>1,500</u>	
Total monthly Expenses	4,800	
Total for 8 months		<u>38,800</u>
Total for "Laboratory"		52,800

## GENERAL BUDGET FOR PLAN "PETYA B"

Initial Expenses

1. Carcass	6,000	
2. Spain	64,800	
3. Radio	150,000	
4. Staff	57,200	
5. Propaganda Branch	6,600	
6. Radio Editorial Office	30,000	
7. Printing Office	123,000	
8. School	46,800	
9. Recruiting Office	8,400	
10. Laboratory	<u>24,000</u>	22
Total Initial Expenses		821,800

Monthly Expenses

1. Carcass	1,200	
2. Spain	68,900	
3. Radio	16,900	
4. Staff	13,900	
5. Propaganda Branch	4,500	
6. Radio Editorial Office	7,200	
7. Printing Office	26,400	
8. School	14,900	
9. Recruiting Office	4,800	
10. Laboratory	<u>3,600</u>	
Total Monthly Expenses		161,300
Total for 8 Months		<u>1,290,400</u>
Total for Petya B		<u>1,812,000</u>